VIRGINIA:

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA ROANOKE DIVISION

MICHAEL BRYANT	
And	
MARVIN MYERS))
)
)
On behalf of themselves and All others so similarly situated	
All others so similarly situated	
Plaintiffs,)
)
V.	Civil Action No. 7:17-CV-00061
FAC Management Group LLC)
Serve:)
Corporation Service Co.)
2711 Centerville Rd, Suite 400	
Wilmington, DE 19808	
And)
)
TBG FAC VA, LLC	
(trading as Dunkin Donuts)	
Registered Agent:	
Corporation Service Company	
Bank of America Center 16 th Fl.)
1111 E. Main St	
Richmond, VA 23219	
Defendants.	

COLLECTIVE ACTION COMPLAINT

Plaintiffs, Michael Bryant and Marvin Myers individually and on behalf of all similarly situated employees, bring this Collective action lawsuit against Defendants FAC Management Group LLC and TBG FAC VA, LLC (trading as Dunkin Donuts) seeking to recover for Defendant's violations of the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 201, et. seq. (the "FLSA"), Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated, allege as follows:

PARTIES AND JURISDICTION

- 1. Plaintiffs Bryant and Myers are both residents of the Commonwealth of Virginia.
- 2. By acting as the named Plaintiffs in this action, Plaintiffs hereby consent to participate as Plaintiffs in an FLSA collective action.
- 3. Defendants FAC Management Group LLC and TBG FAC VA, LLC are both Delaware limited liability companies with their principal place of business in the State of New York.
 - 4. All Defendants were Plaintiff's "employers" for purposes of the FLSA
- 5. During the relevant time period, Defendants have done or continue to do business as sellers of donuts and other baked goods in the City of Salem, doing business as Dunkin Donuts.

- 6. At all times, Defendants were engaged in commerce or in the production of goods for commerce within the meaning of $\S 3(s)(1)$ of the FLSA (29 U.S.C. $\S 203(s)(1)$).
- 7. At all times, Defendants had gross annual revenues exceeding \$500,000.00 and otherwise qualified as an "enterprise" within the meaning of \$3(r) of the FLSA (29 U.S.C. \$203(r)).
- 8. At all times, Plaintiffs were individual employees engaged in commerce or the production of goods for commerce as required by 29 U.S.C. §§ 206-207.
- 9. This Court has jurisdiction over Defendants pursuant to § 16(b) of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), and 28 U.S.C. § 1337 relating to "any civil action or proceeding arising under any act of Congress regulating commerce." Subject matter jurisdiction is invoked under 28 U.S.C. § 1331 (Federal Question). Venue in this Court is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391.

FACTS

- 10. Plaintiffs were formerly employed by Defendants as assistant managers at the "Dunkin Donuts" located on Main Street in Salem, Virginia. Plaintiffs' approximate dates of employment are:
 - Bryant: Spring through Dec. 2016.
 - Myers: May through October 31, 2016.
- 11. At all times, Plaintiffs have typically worked at or about 6-7 shifts per week.

- 12. At all times, Plaintiffs have typically and customarily worked more than 40 hours per week.
- 13. At all times, Defendants have had knowledge of all hours Plaintiffs worked per week and suffered or permitted Plaintiffs to work all hours herein alleged.
- 14. At all times throughout Plaintiffs' employment, Defendants totally failed to pay Plaintiffs overtime wages as required by 29 U.S.C § 207(a).
- 15. At all times throughout Plaintiffs' employment, Defendants announced it was their "policy" that Defendants did not pay overtime wages, despite allowing and expecting their employees to work more than 40 hours a week.
 - 16. Plaintiffs were not exempt from the overtime provisions of the FLSA.
- 17. Under information and belief Defendants own several Dunkin Donuts locations in Southwest Virginia.
- 18. Under information and belief it was the Policy of Defendants that they did not pay overtime at all their Dunking Donuts locations.
- 19. Defendants have also failed to pay Plaintiffs the federally required minimum wage for other hours worked.
- 20. Plaintiffs are pursuing this action as an FLSA collective action on behalf of themselves and all other similarly situated individuals.
 - 21. The collective action includes:
 - i. Current and former employees who worked at the Southwest Virginia Dunkin Donuts locations owned and operated by Defendants; and

- ii. Who were not paid by Defendants for all hours worked at the hourly rate required by the FLSA.
- 22. In the present case, the questions of law or fact common to the members of the collective action class predominate over any questions affecting only individual collective action class members.
- 23. The essence of this entire case is the Plaintiff and other similarly situated individuals were not paid for hours worked at an hourly rate at least equal to the Federal minimum wage, and/or the overtime rate required by the FLSA.
- 24. Common to Plaintiffs and all collective action class members is that each individual received wages from Defendants at a rate less than what is required by the FLSA for all hours worked each week.
- 25. Specifically, each Plaintiff and each collective action class member is owed the difference between their regular hourly rates and the FLSA required rate and statutory damages under the FLSA.
- 26. In the present case, the number of collective action class members is believed to exceed 50.
- 27. All class members are readily identifiable from information and records, on information and belief, in the possession and control of the Defendants.

CAUSES OF ACTION

COUNT I

Violation of Federal Fair Labor Standards Act

- 28. Plaintiffs re-allege and reassert each and every allegation set forth above as if each were set forth herein.
- 29. Section 206(a)(1) of the FLSA provides that no employer shall employ any employee for an hourly wage of less than the Federal minimum wage, currently \$7.25 per hour.
- 30. At all times, Plaintiffs were "employees" covered by the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 206(a)(1) and 207(a).
 - 31. At all times, Defendants were Plaintiffs' "employers" under the FLSA.
- 32. Defendants, as the employers of Plaintiffs were obligated to compensate Plaintiffs and other non-exempt employees for all hours worked at an hourly rate not less than the Federal minimum wage and at a rate not less than one and one-half times the regular rate at which he is employed for any work over 40 hours in a work-week.
- 33. At all times, Defendants failed to compensate Plaintiff's for all hours worked at an hourly rate not less than the Federal minimum wage.
- 34. At all times, Defendants failed to compensate Plaintiff's at a rate not less than one and one-half times the regular rate at which he is employed for any work over 40 hours in a work-week.
- 35. At all times, Defendants had actual knowledge that the compensation method and amount that Defendants paid Plaintiffs and other employees was less

than the compensation method and amount required by the FLSA, and in fact had a purposeful policy of not paying overtime as required.

36. Defendants' failure to pay compensation to Plaintiffs and other employees as required by the FLSA was willful and intentional, and not in good faith.

COUNT II

- 37. Plaintiffs re-allege and reassert each and every allegation set forth above as if each were set forth herein.
- 38. FLSA section 215(a)(3) provides, in relevant part: "[I]t shall be unlawful for any person... to discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee because such employee has filed *any complaint* or instituted or caused to be instituted any proceeding under or related to this chapter..." (emphasis supplied).
- 39. The Plaintiff Bryant in this case has all filed the instant lawsuit against Defendant seeking relief for unpaid wages under the FLSA.
- 40. In response to Plaintiffs' notice of the impending Complaint, Defendants have caused Plaintiff Bryant to endure increased and unwarranted public criticism and humiliation at his new place of employment. Defendants and their agents have caused official complaints to be registered about Defendant Bryant at his new place of employment which have materially impacted his present employment and wages, causing him to lose an expected raise.

- 41. The above campaign of harassment of the Plaintiff Bryant has continued even in the face of warning by counsel that such behavior was considered retaliatory.
- 42. Defendants retaliated against Plaintiff Bryant as set forth above for complaining and asserting their rights to unpaid wages under the FLSA.
- 43. Defendants acted in bad faith in retaliating against Plaintiff Bryant for complaining to Defendants regarding Defendants' failure and to abide by the wage payments requirements of the FLSA.
- 44. As a result of Defendants' unlawful retaliatory actions, Plaintiff Bryant has suffered and continues to suffer past and future economic loss, severe mental anguish, and other damages.

WHEREFORE, Defendants are liable, jointly and severally, to Plaintiffs (and all others similarly situated who have joined in this suit) for unpaid minimum wages and unpaid overtime wages in such amounts as are proven at trial, plus an equal amount in liquidated damages, interest (both pre- and post-judgment), attorney's fees, the costs of this action, and any other and further relief this Court deems appropriate.

WHEREFORE, Defendants are liable, jointly and severally, to Plaintiff Bryant for past and future economic loss, severe mental anguish, and other damages for the retaliation visited upon him, plus interest (both pre- and post-judgment), attorney's fees, the costs of this action, and any other and further relief this Court deems appropriate.

MICHAEL BRYANT MARVIN MYERS

By: /s/ JOHNEAL M. WHITE
Johneal M. White, Esquire (VSB #74251)
Risa S. Katz, Esquire (VSB # 89312)
Attorney for All Plaintiffs
GLENN ROBINSON & CATHEY PLC
Fulton Motor Lofts
400 Salem Avenue, S.W. - Suite 100
Roanoke, Virginia 24016
(540) 767-2200 – Phone
(540) 767-2220 – Fax
jwhite@glennrob.com
rkatz@glennrob.com

CIVIL COVER SHEET

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS Michael Bryant and Marvin Myers on behalf of themselves and all other similarly situated				DEFENDANTS FAC Management Group LLC and TBG FAC VA, LLC trading as Dunkin Donuts					
(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff Montgomery Co, VA (EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)			4	County of Residence	of First List	ed Defendant	Westchest	er Co, I	NY
				(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY) NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.					
(c) Attorneys (Firm Name, Johneal M. White, Risa S Salem Ave., Suite 100, F	S. Katz, Glenn Robins	<i>□)</i> on & Cathey PLC, ∠	400	Attorneys (If Known)					
II. BASIS OF JURISD	ICTION (Place an "X" in C	One Box Only)	III. CI	TIZENSHIP OF P	RINCIPA	L PARTIES			
☐ 1 U.S. Government Plaintiff	★ 3 Federal Question (U.S. Government Not a Party)			(For Diversity Cases Only) PTF DEF Citizen of This State D 1 D 1 Incorporated or Principal Place of Business In This State					
☐ 2 U.S. Government Defendant	 4 Diversity (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III) 			en of Another State		Incorporated and I of Business In A		□ 5	□ 5
				en or Subject of a reign Country	3 🗇 3	Foreign Nation		 6	
IV. NATURE OF SUIT		nly) DRTS	- Fe	ORFEITURE/PENALTY		for: Nature of Su KRUPTCY		otions.	TES
□ 110 Insurance □ 120 Marine □ 130 Miller Act □ 140 Negotiable Instrument □ 150 Recovery of Overpayment	PERSONAL INJURY 310 Airplane 315 Airplane Product Liability 320 Assault, Libel & Slander 330 Federal Employers' Liability 340 Marine 345 Marine Product Liability 350 Motor Vehicle Product Liability 360 Other Personal Injury 360 Other Personal Injury 46dical Malpractice CIVIL RIGHTS 440 Other Civil Rights 441 Voting 442 Employment 443 Housing/ Accommodations 445 Amer, w/Disabilities - Employment 446 Amer, w/Disabilities - Other 448 Education	PERSONAL INJUR 365 Personal Injury - Product Liability 367 Health Care/ Pharmaceutical Personal Injury Product Liability 368 Asbestos Personal Injury Product Liability 368 Asbestos Personal Injury Product Liability PERSONAL PROPER 370 Other Fraud 371 Truth in Lending 380 Other Personal Property Damage 385 Property Damage Product Liability PRISONER PETIFION Habeas Corpus: 463 Alien Detaince 510 Motions to Vacate Sentence 530 General 535 Death Penalty Other: 540 Mandamus & Othe 550 Civil Rights 555 Prison Conditions of Confinement	0 69 RTY 2 71 0 72 0 74 0 79	LABOR O Fair Labor Standards Act C Labor/Management Relations Railway Labor Act Family and Medical Leave Act Other Labor Litigation Employee Retirement Income Security Act IMMIGRATION Naturalization Application Other Labor Litigation Company of the Company of	422 Appe	al 28 USC 158 drawal SC 157 RTY RIGHTS rights t emark SECURIFY (1395ff) Lung (923) C/DIWW (405(g)) Title XVI 405(g)) MEPAX SUFFS 6 (U.S. Plaintiff efendant)	375 False C 376 Qui Ta 3729(a 400 State R 410 Antitude 430 Banks 450 Comm 460 Deport 470 Racket Corrup 480 Consu 490 Cable/s 850 Securit Exchan 890 Other S 891 Agricu 893 Enviro 895 Freedo Act 896 Arbitra 899 Admin Act/Re	Claims Act Im (31 US) i)) teapportion ist and Banki erce ation eer Influe t Organiza mer Credit Sat TV ites/Comm nge Statutory A Itural Acts mm of Infor tition istrative P y Decision tutionality	onment ing sinced and attions t modities/ Actions s Autters runation
V. ORIGIN (Place an "X" in X 1 Original D 2 Rel Proceeding	moved from \Box 3	Remanded from C Appellate Court	J 4 Rein Reop	stated or 5 Transfe bened Another (specify)	τred from r District	☐ 6 Multidistr Litigation Transfer		Multidis Litigatio Direct I	on -
VI. CAUSE OF ACTIO	1 29 U.S.C sec. 20	1 et. seq.	e filing (L	Do not cite jurisdictional stati	utes unless div	versity);			
VII. REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT:		IS A CLASS ACTION	1 D)	EMAND \$		HECK YES only URY DEMAND:		complai	
VIII. RELATED CASE IF ANY	E(S) (See instructions):	JUDGE			DOCKE	T NUMBER			
DATE 02/16/2017		SIGNATURE OF ATT	ORNEY	of RECORD	1				
	\$400.00	APPLYING IFP		_{JUDGE} U	RBANS:	KI _{MAG. JUI}	OGE		
2620118 Case 7:17	-cv-00061-MFU	Document 1	L-1 F	iled 02/17/17 17-CV-0061	Page 1	. of 1 Paç	 geid#: 10		

ClassAction.org

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this post: FAC Management Group LLC, One Other Knocked with FLSA Lawsuit